Utah Inland Port Authority Board

Utah Inland Port Authority Board Meeting Minutes

April 24, 2019 • 4:00 p.m. − 6:00 p.m. North Star Elementary 545 Morton Drive Salt Lake City, UT 84116

Board Members Present: Lara Fritts, D. Gregg Buxton, Ben Hart, Carlos Braceras, Michael Jensen, Blake Thomas, Derek Miller

Board Members Absent: Francis Gibson, Garth "Tooter" Ogden, Nicole Cottle, James Rogers,

Others participating Christopher M. Conabee, Paul Morris, Nick Tarbet, Robert Nutzman, Jill Flygare, Tom Wadsworth,

in meeting and staff: Aimee Edwards

Others in attendance: Members of the public

A. Welcome

Chair Derek Miller welcomed the public and board members to this Utah Inland Port Authority Board Meeting.

Pledge of Allegiance

Michael Jensen lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

Derek Miller thanked members of the public for attending and thanked the School District and North Star Elementary for hosting the Board Meeting.

Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes:

Board Member Jensen moved to approve the minutes of the March 27, 2019 board meeting.

Board Member Fritts seconded the motion.

The motion was approved unanimously.

B. Discussion Items:

#1 Draft Budget

Interim Director Christopher Conabee told the board that State code required the board to consider and approve amendments, if any, to the current fiscal year's budget (which was previously approved by the board) and the budget for the next fiscal year. He thanked Jill Flygare and Paul Morris for their work in preparing these budgets for the board to review.

Paul Morris explained the legal process to have the FY2020 budget adopted by June 22.

Chairman Miller asked Mr. Conabee to give the highlights of the budget.

Mr. Conabee started to give an update; however, he was interrupted by members of the public protesting the activities of the Utah Inland Port.

Chairman Miller stated that the interruption was out of order. He apologized to those in attendance whose right to give public input was taken from them by the actions of the protestors.

Chairman Miller asked numerous times for the protestors to stop interrupting the meeting and wait to speak during the designated public comment portion of the meeting.

Protestors refused to stop.

Adjournment:

The Board voted to close the meeting and reschedule the meeting at a future date.

Adopted Budget Form for:

Name: Utah Inland Port Authority

Utah Inland Port Authority

Fiscal Year Ended: 2019

Basic Form Instructions

- As required by Utah statutes, budget forms submitted must present a balanced budget, meaning budgeted expenditures must equal budgeted revenues.
- If prior year surplus amounts are to be appropriated in this budget, the amount is to be presented as a source of revenue in the budget. Also, any budgeted increase in a fund balance n must be presented as an expenditure within the appropriate st budget.
- A copy of the final budget should be sent to the State Auditor's Office within 30 days of adoption.
- 4. Please report amounts rounded to the nearest dollar.
- 5. Some items may not apply to your entity.

- If you have questions about the form, call Jeremy Walker at (801) 538-1040, or send an email to jeremywalker@utah.gov.
- 7. Upload completed budgets to reporting.auditor.utah.gov. Choose Option 1
 (Upload a budget, financial statement, impact fee, or other document), and log-in or register. Choose Option 1 again and follow the instructions. If you have any questions related to the uploading of your document, please contact our office at 801-538-1025 or stateauditor@utah.gov.

office at 801-538-1025 or stateauditor@utah.gov.

Definitions: Current Budget Year: The budget year in which the Utah Inland Port Authority is currently operating. Ensuing Budget Year: The next upcoming budget year, also known as the "incoming" budget year.

r's

Part I General Fund Revenues

Source of Revenue (a)	Prior Year Actual Revenue (b)	Current Year Estimate (c)	Ensuing Year Approved Budget Appropriation (d)
Taxes			
Property Tax Differential - Current			
Prior Years' Property Tax Differential - Delinquent			
Sales and Use Tax (Point of Sale)			
Other (specify):			
Intergovernmental Revenue			
State Grants		1,975,000	1,975,000
Other (specify):			
Miscellaneous Revenue			
Interest Earnings		0	0
Intermodal Facility Operations Revenue			
Sale of Property			
Sales of Materials and Supplies			
Sales of Bonds			
Other Financing - Capital Lease Obligations			

Contributions and Transfers			
Loan From UDOT			
Loan From:			
Beg. General Fund Bal. to be Appropriated			
TOTAL REVENUES	0	1,975,000	1,975

ne Utah Inland Port Authority	Fiscal Year Ended	2019	
Part II General Fund Expenditures			
Expenditure (a)	Prior Year Actual Exp. (b)	Current Year Estimate (c)	Ensuing Year Approved Budge Appropriation (d)
Operating Expenses			
Staff Salaries		0	
Rent		0	
Legal Fees		122,500	172,
Travel		752	1,
Supplies & Other Materials		418	·
Consulting Fees and Professional Services		144,987	500,
Liabililty Insurance		5,295	5,2
Other (Specify):			
Inland Port Development Activities			
Acquistion of Property			
Site Improvements or Preparation Costs			
Publicly Owned Infrastructure and Improvements			
Intermodal Facility Privilege Tax			
Tax Differential Payments (not included above)			
Other (Specify):			
Debt Service			
Principal and Interest			
UDOT Loan			
Other (Specify):			
Miscellaneous			
Other (Specify):			
Budgeted Increase in Fund Balance		1,701,048	1,295,
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	0	1,975,000	1,975,

RESOLUTION 2019-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE UTAH INLAND PORT AUTHORITY APPROVING AN AMENDED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018-19

WHEREAS, pursuant to §11-58-802(1) Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended ("UCA"), the Utah Inland Port Authority ("Authority") may amend its annual budget by resolution; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to §11-58-801(4) UCA, the Authority is required to hold a public hearing, provide notice of this hearing by publishing at least one notice in a newspaper of general circulation within the state one week before the public hearing and on the Utah Public Notice Website, and make the proposed budget amendment available for public inspection at least three days before the date of the public hearing; and

WHEREAS, such notice was published in the *Salt Lake Tribune*, the *Desert News*, and on the Utah Public Notice Website; the public hearing was held on June 5, 2019; and, the proposed budget amendment was made available for public inspection at least three business days before the public hearing; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE AUTHORITY BOARD that the attached amended budget for FY 2018-19 is hereby adopted and the staff is directed to file it as required by §11-58-801(6) UCA.

	Utah Inland Port Authority	
	Derek Miller	
	Chair	
Attest:		
Authority Staff		

RESOLUTION 2019-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE UTAH INLAND PORT AUTHORITY APPROVING A BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-20

WHEREAS, pursuant to §11-58-801 Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended ("UCA"), the Utah Inland Port Authority ("Authority") is required to adopt an annual budget; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to §11-58-801(4) UCA, the Authority is required to hold a public hearing, provide notice of this hearing by publishing at least one notice in a newspaper of general circulation within the state one week before the public hearing and on the Utah Public Notice Website, and make the proposed budget available for public inspection at least three days before the date of the public hearing; and

WHEREAS, such notice was published in the *Salt Lake Tribune*, the *Desert News*, and on the Utah Public Notice Website; the public hearing was held on June 5, 2019; and, the proposed budget was made available for public inspection at least three business days before the public hearing; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE AUTHORITY BOARD that the attached budget for FY 2019-20 is hereby adopted and the staff is directed to file it as required by §11-58-801(6) UCA.

	Utah Inland Port Authority	
	Derek Miller	
	Chair	
Attest:		
Authority Staff		

RESOLUTION 2019-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE UTAH INLAND PORT AUTHORITY

AS EXECUTIVE

APPOINTING

AITOININO					
DIRECTOR					
WHEREAS, pursuant to §11 Utah Inland Port Authority ("Authorit oversee the day-to-day operations of the and	ty") is required	to "hire a full-tir	ne execut	ive director to m	anage and
	extensive	nationwide") has been		international as the person wh	search, o has "the
education, experience, and training r maximizes the potential for successful stated in Subsection 11-58-203(1)" as	necessary to pe ly achieving an	erform the execund implementing t	tive directive direction that the strateg	ctor's duties in a	way that
WHEREAS, §11-58-301(3) WHEREAS, WHEREAS, WHER	UCA provides	that the "board m	nay by res	solution delegate	powers to

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE AUTHORITY BOARD as follows:

compensation, and benefits as set forth in this resolution and in the attached Employment Agreement;

1. _____ is appointed as Executive Director of the Authority;

WHEREAS, _____ will serve at the pleasure of the board and has the duties,

- 2. The attached Employment Agreement with ______ is approved, and the Chair is authorized to execute it on behalf of the Authority; and,
- 3. The Authority's Executive Director shall have the power and authority on behalf of the Authority to:
 - a. Administer all aspects of the day to day operations of the Authority and adopt and amend Executive Orders establishing administrative policies, including amending board approved policies that require conforming amendments because of legislative changes. The Executive Director shall provide the board members with a copy of all updated board approved policies that are amended pursuant to this delegated authority.
 - b. Make expenditures that are consistent with the board approved budget and to change expenditures in the adopted budget from one line item to another so long as the expenditures do not exceed the total in the adopted budget. Board members shall be informed of any expenditure change of \$50,000 or greater.
 - c. Hire the Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, required by statute, and such other staff, as needed, and to administer all aspects of the human resource administration of the Authority, including hiring, firing, discipline, raises, promotions, travel, expense reimbursement and benefits. The Executive Director may delegate duties and authority to staff members, as determined necessary or desirable.
 - d. Make purchases, the Executive Director shall adopt a procurement policy. The policy shall be consistent with the following guidelines as to when a competitive process, involving RFPs or bids, is necessary and when Board approval is necessary. All procurements must be within the approved budget expenditure total.

- i. Purchases of \$50,000 or more shall be made by a competitive process and board approval. Purchases of less than \$50,000 may be made by a competitive process but without board approval. If the purchase is less than \$5,000 neither a competitive process nor board approval is required.
- ii. A competitive process is not required for items on the State Contract list; other governmental entities procurements within 90 days of the purchase; emergency purchases; sole source, specialized or to meet existing needs purchases; professional services negotiated on demonstrated competence and qualification at a fair and reasonable price; and, interlocal cooperation agreements. If the procurement is \$50,000 or more it must be reported to the board.
- iii. The Executive Director may execute contract extensions and changes without board approval, if the funding is within the approved budget amounts.
- e. Open bank accounts, including PTIF accounts, obtain credit cards for small purchases, and transact business on behalf of the Authority. The Executive Director shall establish internal control procedures for ensuring that funds and credit cards are used appropriately.
- f. Negotiate leases for and execute and deliver leases for office space for the operation of the Authority's business.
- g. Execute contracts, agreements, and all other documents, agreements, or certifications. If it involves a procurement that requires Board approval or there is a statutory requirement for board approval, then it shall be approved by the Board prior to execution. However, the Executive Director shall not enter into any contract or transaction relating to the business or operations of the Authority with the Executive Director, staff member or any member of the board or any affiliate of any of the foregoing persons, or with any officer, director or family member of any those persons or their respective affiliates.
- h. Execute and file all reports and maintain all records required by law or by this Resolution.
- i. Coordinate the management and operation of the Authority and perform other normal business functions and otherwise operate and manage the business and affairs of the Authority in accordance with and as limited by this Resolution.
- 4. Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 3 or any other provisions herein, the Executive Director shall not have the right or power to do any of the following without the consent of board of directors of the Authority acting by majority vote.
 - a. Do any act that would make it impossible to carry on the ordinary business of the Authority.
 - b. Confess a judgment against the Authority.
 - c. Use the Authority name, credit, or assets for other than Authority purposes.
 - d. Do any act in contravention of the Utah Inland Port Authority Act.

- e. Submit any dispute involving the Authority to binding arbitration.
- f. Cause the Authority to borrow or incur any indebtedness.

	-	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
		Utah Inland Port Authority
		Derek Miller Chair
Attest:		
Authority Staff		

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") which is signed as of
June 5, 2019, is entered into between Utah Inland Port Authority, a body politic of the State of
Utah ("UIPA"), organized and governed under §§11-58-101 et. Seq. Utah Code Annotated 1953,
as amended or any successor or replacement provisions (the "Act"), and
(the "Employee"), an individual currently resident of but
who will relocate to and reside in Utah to perform services under this Agreement.

WHEREAS, UIPA wishes to employ the Employee to render services for UIPA on the terms set forth in this Agreement, and the Employee wishes to be retained and employed by UIPA on such terms.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements set forth below and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

- **1. Employment**. UIPA hereby employs the Employee, and the Employee accepts such employment and agrees to perform services for UIPA, for the period and upon the other terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
- **2. Term**. Unless terminated at an earlier date in accordance with Section 6 of this Agreement, the term of employment will be for a period of one year commencing on June 24, 2019 (the "*Term*"). This Agreement shall automatically renew for an additional one-year term ("*Renewal Term*") every year on the anniversary of the Effective Date unless either party gives notice of non-renewal (which either party may give for any reason or no reason and with or without Cause) not less than thirty (30) days prior to the end of the Term or Renewal Term then ending.

3. Position and Duties.

- (a) <u>Service with Company</u>. During the term of the Employee's employment, the Employee agrees to be employed as UIPA's Executive Director. The Employee will report to the Board of Directors of UIPA ("Board") with day-to-day interactions and guidance from the Board's Chair. The Employee's duties include budgeting, planning, and execution of UIPA's mission, day-to-day management of Company operations and staff, and such matters as may be delegated to the Employee by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may make changes from time to time at its sole discretion to the duties, reporting relationships and title of the Employee.
- (b) <u>Performance of Duties</u>. The Employee will serve UIPA faithfully and devote full time, attention and efforts to the business and affairs of UIPA in a manner consistent with other executive officers in the inland port industry. The Employee will comply with all rules, policies and procedures of UIPA as modified from time to time, including without limitation, rules and procedures set forth in UIPA's employee handbook, supervisor's manuals and operating manuals as such shall be adopted and amended from time to time. The Employee will perform all of the Employee's responsibilities in compliance with all applicable laws and will ensure that the operations that Employee manages are in compliance with all applicable laws. During the

Employee's employment, the Employee will not engage in any other business activity, which, in the reasonable judgment of the Board of Directors, conflicts with the duties of the Employee under this Agreement, whether or not such activity is pursued for gain, profit or other pecuniary advantage. The Employee hereby confirms that the Employee is under no contractual commitments inconsistent with the Employee's obligations set forth in this Agreement and that, during the term of this Agreement, the Employee will not render or perform services for any other corporation, firm, entity or person which are inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement. Employee's engagement in Employee's Businesses in compliance with his covenants as mentioned above shall not be considered to conflict with his duties hereunder or be considered inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement.

4. Compensation.

- (a) <u>Base Salary</u>. UIPA will pay to the Employee a base salary of \$255,000 per annum ("Base Salary") unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, subject to withholdings and deductions as required by law, in accordance with UIPA's normal payroll procedures and policies. Annual increases are considered prior to the commencement of each Renewal Term, if any, consistent with increases to other employees. Employee's Base Salary shall not be decreased during any Term.
- (b) Participation in Benefit Plans. The Employee will be eligible to participate in all employee benefit programs established by UIPA that are applicable to executive employees such as medical insurance, dental, vision service plans, short and long term disability plans, 403(b) plans, and flexible health spending accounts on a basis commensurate with the Employee's position and in accordance with UIPA's policies from time to time, but nothing herein shall require the adoption or maintenance of any such plan. Alternatively, if Employee desires to procure separate health insurance, the premiums shall be reimbursed by UIPA at least up to the amount UIPA would otherwise have paid for Employee if the Employee were on UIPA's health insurance.
- (c) <u>Vacations, Holidays and Expenses</u>. For the duration of the Employee's employment hereunder, the Employee will be provided such holidays and sick leave as UIPA makes available to its executive employees generally. The Employee will receive 30 days of vacation annually during the Term or Renewal Term.
- (d) Expenses. UIPA will reimburse the Employee for moving expenses incurred in 2019 of up to \$15,000. UIPA will reimburse the Employee for all reasonable and necessary out-of-pocket expenses incurred by him in the performance of his duties under this Agreement, subject to UIPA's normal policies for expense verification. This reimbursement will provide for expenses including business mobile phone service, high speed internet service, landline dedicated for business purposes and office supplies. Reasonable office equipment and computer/mobile device equipment necessary for performance of duties will be reimbursed with advance authorization prior to purchase. Each party shall bear its attorney fees incurred in drafting and negotiating this Agreement.
- **5. Ventures**. If, during the term of the Employee's employment the Employee is engaged in or associated with the planning or implementing of any project, program or venture involving

UIPA and a third party or parties, all rights in such project, program or venture shall belong to UIPA. Except as approved by UIPA's Board, the Employee shall not be entitled to any commission, finder's fee or other compensation in connection therewith other than the compensation to be paid to the Employee as provided in this Agreement. The Employee shall have no interest, direct or indirect, in any vendor or customer of UIPA or any party with which UIPA shares tax differential money.

6. Termination of Employment.

- (a) <u>Grounds for Termination</u>. The Employee's employment shall terminate in the event:
 - (i) The Employee dies;
 - (ii) The Employee becomes "Disabled" as such term is defined in Section 6(e);
 - (iii) UIPA elects to terminate this Agreement for Cause (as defined in Section 6(b)) and notifies the Employee in writing of such election;
 - (iv) The Employee voluntarily elects to terminate this Agreement and notifies UIPA in writing of such election;
 - (v) UIPA elects to terminate this Agreement without Cause (as defined in Section 6(b)) and notifies the Employee in writing of such election; or
 - (vi) The Employee elects to terminate this Agreement for Good Reason (as defined in Section 6(c).

If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to clause (i), (ii) or (iii) of this Section 6(a), such termination shall be effective immediately. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to clause (iv) of this Section 6(a), such termination shall be effective 30 days after delivery of the notice of termination; *provided*, that, for a termination pursuant to clause (iv) only, UIPA may at its discretion elect to accelerate such termination date to any date after Employee's notice of termination. All compensation, payments and unvested benefits (identified in paragraph 4 or otherwise) will cease on the termination date, and all unused vacation shall be forfeited, except as otherwise set forth in the paragraph that immediately follows.

If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to clause (v) or (vi) of this Section 6(a), Employee shall, within thirty days of such termination, receive a lump sum payment equal to six times the monthly salary paid to Employee; provided that UIPA's obligation to make such payments is expressly conditioned upon Employee's execution and non-revocation of a full, complete, and enforceable release of claims against UIPA, its affiliates and any of their shareholders, directors, officers, employees or agents in a form to be prepared by UIPA. With respect to all other termination events, no severance payment shall be paid to Employee.

(b) "Cause" Defined. "Cause" means:

- (i) The Employee has materially breached any contractual obligation under this Agreement (including, without limitation, the Employee's agreement to serve UIPA faithfully and devote full time, attention and efforts to the business and affairs of UIPA subject to Section 4(c) hereof) or has materially failed to comply with UIPA's written policies or rules and such breach or failure to comply continues unremedied for a period of 30 days after written notice to the Employee by UIPA;
- (ii) The Employee materially fails to reasonably perform any assigned job responsibility, or any assigned duty from the Board, that continues unremedied for a period of 30 days after written notice to the Employee by UIPA;
- (iii) The Employee's conviction of, plea of "guilty" or "no contest" to, or failure to contest prosecution of, a felony of any type or a misdemeanor involving theft, misrepresentation, or moral turpitude; or
- (iv) The Employee has engaged in gross negligence or willful misconduct such as fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement in connection with UIPA's business.

(c) "Good Reason" means:

- (i) The Board assigns to Employee duties which are in material respects inconsistent with the Employee's position as set forth in Section 3(a);
- (ii) A material breach by UIPA of its obligations under paragraph 4 of this Agreement, and such breach or failure to comply continues unremedied for a period of 30 days after written notice to the UIPA by Employee.
- (d) <u>Effect of Termination</u>. Notwithstanding any termination of this Agreement, the Employee, in consideration of the Employee's employment hereunder to the date of such termination, shall remain bound by the provisions of this Agreement, which specifically relate to periods, activities or obligations upon or subsequent to the termination of the Employee's employment.
- (e) <u>"Disabled" Defined.</u> "Disabled" means any mental or physical condition that renders the Employee unable to perform the essential functions of the Employee's position, with or without reasonable accommodation, for a period in excess of three months.
- (f) <u>Surrender of Records and Property</u>. Upon termination of the Employee's employment with UIPA, the Employee shall deliver promptly to UIPA all records, manuals, books, blank forms, documents, letters, memoranda, notes, notebooks, reports, data, tables, calculations or copies thereof that relate in any way to the business, products, practices or techniques of UIPA, and all other property, trade secrets and confidential information of UIPA, including, but not limited to, all documents that in whole or in part contain any trade secrets or confidential information of UIPA, which in any of these cases are in the Employee's possession or under the Employee's control.
- 7. <u>Confidentiality</u>. Employee and UIPA agree to keep the terms and existence of this Agreement confidential except as to those employees of UIPA necessary to administer the terms

of this Agreement and except as necessary to meet any disclosure requirements of applicable law.

8. Settlement of Disputes.

- (a) <u>Venue</u>. Any action at law, suit in equity or judicial proceeding arising directly, indirectly, or otherwise in connection with, out of, related to or from this Agreement, or any provision hereof, shall be litigated only in the courts of the State of Utah, County of Salt Lake. The Employee and UIPA consent to the jurisdiction of such courts over the subject matter of disputes under this Agreement. The Employee waives any right the Employee may have to transfer or change the venue of any litigation brought against the Employee by UIPA.
- (b) <u>Costs</u>. The non-breaching Party in any action or proceeding to enforce this Agreement shall be entitled to all expenses and costs, including reasonable attorney fees, incurred in obtaining redress.

9. Miscellaneous.

- (a) <u>Entire Agreement</u>. This Agreement (including the exhibits, schedules and other documents referred to herein) contains the entire understanding between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior understandings, agreements or representations, written or oral, relating to the subject matter hereof.
- (b) <u>Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed in separate counterparts, each of which will be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement, and any party hereto may execute this Agreement by signing any such counterpart.
- (c) <u>Severability</u>. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable under any applicable law or rule, the validity, legality and enforceability of the other provision of this Agreement will not be affected or impaired thereby.
- (d) <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives and, to the extent permitted by Section 9(e), successors and assigns.
- (e) <u>Assignability</u>. Neither this Agreement nor any right, remedy, obligation or liability arising hereunder or by reason hereof shall be assignable (including by operation of law) by either party without the prior written consent of the other party to this Agreement
- (f) Modification, Amendment, Waiver or Termination. No provision of this Agreement may be modified, amended, waived or terminated except by an instrument in writing signed by the parties to this Agreement. No course of dealing between the parties will modify, amend, waive or terminate any provision of this Agreement or any rights or obligations of any party under or by reason of this Agreement. No delay on the part of UIPA in exercising any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver of such right. No waiver, express or implied, by UIPA

of any right or any breach by the Employee shall constitute a waiver of any other right or breach by the Employee.

(g) <u>Notices</u>. All notices, consents, requests, instructions, approvals or other communications provided for herein shall be in writing and delivered by personal delivery, overnight courier, mail, electronic facsimile or e-mail addressed to the receiving party at the address set forth herein. All such communications shall be effective when received.

Utah Inland Port Authority
60 East South Temple, 3rd Floor
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
Attn: Derek Miller (dmiller@slchamber.com)

Any party may change the address set forth above by notice to each other party given as provided herein.

- (h) <u>Headings</u>. The headings and any table of contents contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
- (i) <u>Governing Law.</u> ALL MATTERS RELATING TO THE INTERPRETATION, CONSTRUCTION, VALIDITY AND ENFORCEMENT OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF UTAH, WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO ANY CHOICE OF LAW PROVISIONS THEREOF.
- (j) <u>Third-Party Benefit</u>. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer upon any other person any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities of any nature whatsoever.
- (k) <u>Withholding Taxes</u>. UIPA may withhold from any benefits payable under this Agreement all federal, state, city or other taxes as shall be required pursuant to any law or governmental regulation or ruling.
- (l) <u>Effective Date</u>. This Agreement is signed in June 2019. The Effective Date of this Agreement, on which the obligations hereunder become effective, shall be June 24, 2019.

[Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth in the first paragraph.

Utah Inland Port Authority

RESOLUTION 2019-06

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING ADMISSION TO THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the Utah Inland Port Authority ("Authority") is authorized to employ personnel on a full-time basis; and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest to provide benefits authorized by Utah state law for the personnel by the Authority; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Authority's Board of Directors to approve and authorize coverage under Public Employees' Retirement Systems for Authority personnel.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the Utah Inland Port Authority that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to undertake all of the necessary actions to enroll the Authority in the benefit programs of the Public Employees' Retirement Systems offered by Utah Retirement Systems, including the retirement coverage and death benefit coverage for qualified employees under the laws and regulations of the Utah Retirement Systems.

	Utah Inland Port Authority	
	Derek Miller	
	Chair	
Attest:		
Authority Staff		